
eCdJ ‘XL”
MINUTES OF THE TWO THOUSAND & SECOND

REGULAR MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE

MIDDLE RIO GRANDE CONSERVANCY DISTRICT
June 11, 2012

BK7O121

Directors having been duly notified, Chairman Lente called the meeting to order at 3:02PM at the MRGCD
General Office The following Directors and Staff were present:

The following names of individuals were interested viewers and/or participants:

JoAnn Van Der Geest
Patrick Sanchez
Michael Lundmark
Toni Barrow
Jess Franks
Myra Sanchez-Chavez Thompson
Claudio Gonzales
Jerry Ginsburg, TVNA
Paula Sichier, Snake Ranch
Jessica Tracy, Pueblo of Sandia

Sonya Vigil
Jonathan Garcia
Harvey Crowley
Charles Riley, Bureau of Indian Affairs
Emily Mechenbier
James Maestas, SVRAA
Mike Hamman, Bureau of Reclamation
Che Nyamboli, Pueblo of San Felipe
Bruce Wiggins, Wiggins, Williams & Wiggins
Frank Chavez, Pueblo of Sandia

AGENDA ITEM NO. I PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Chairman Lente requested that Director Oglesby lead the Pledge of Allegiance.

Chairman Lente welcomed the guests and declared a quorum.

AGENDA ITEM NO.2— APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA

Chairman Lente called for approval of the agenda. Director Abeita requested that an item be added to
Reports from the Board regarding the Ditch Break/Overflow Report form and this will become agenda item 12f
Mr Houser requested an item regarding LRPA start dates and that will become 4e Mr. Shah requested an
item on the Fire Policy and that wilt be agenda item lOi. Chairman Lente said he would like to add an item as
agenda item 12 g regarding the Sandia Pueblo Feast Day on Wednesday June 1 3

Director Kelly made the MOTION TO APPROVE THE AGENDA AS MODIFIED Director Paiz seconded
the motion The MOTION CARRIED unanimously

DIRECTORS: STAFF:

Derrick J. Lente Chair Subhas K. Shah, Chief Engineer/CEO
Eugene Abeita Vice-Chair Charles T. DuMars Chief Water Counsel
Adrian Oglesby Director Loma M. Wiggins General Counsel
Karen Dunning Director Steven L. Houser Secretary/Treasurer
John P. Kelly Director Jeanette Bustamante Administrative Officer
Chris Sichler Director Leonard Utter, Engineer Associate
Johnny L. Paiz Director Ray Gomez Assistant Engineer

Mary D’Omellas HR Director
Tom Thorpe Public Information Officer
Eric Zamora Belen Division Manager



BK70122

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 - REORGANIZATION OF THE BOARD Lorna M. WIQQInS. MRGCD General
Counsel)

Ms. Wiggins said in accordance with the Board’s Resolution BD-05-23-1 1 -45, the Board must elect a
Board Chair and Vice Chair at its first meeting in the month of June She said the process that will be used
will be to call for nominations or self nominations, a second and then a vote by hand if that meets with the
Board’s approval. The Board nodded in consensus.

Ms. Wiggins said the first nomination would be for the position of Board Chair. Director Dunning
nominated Chairman Lente and Ms. Wiggins asked if there were other nominations or self-nominations and
there were none. Ms. Wiggins declared the nominations closed. She called for a vote and for all those in
favor of nominating Chairman Lente to serve a second term, and all Board members voted affirmative; there
were no oppositions.

Ms. Wiggins said the next nomination or self nomination would be for Vice Chair. Director Paiz nominated
Director Abeita. She asked if there were other nominations or self-nominations and there were none. Ms.
Wiggins declared the nomination closed. She called for a vote and all for all those in favor of nominating Vice
Chair Abeita to serve a second term, and all Board members voted affirmative; there were no oppositions.

Ms. Wiggins said that Chairman Lente and Vice Chair Abeita would serve for a second term.

AGENDA ITEM NO.4 - APPROVAL BILLS AND PAYROLL RATIFICATION

a. Payment Ratification — June 1. 2012

Chairman Lente called for approval of the Bills and Payroll Ratification for June 1, 2012.

Director Sichler MADE THE MOTiON TO APPROVE THE BILLS AND PAYROLL
RATIFICATION FOR JUNE 1, 2012 AS PRESENTED. Director Paiz seconded the motion. The
MOTION CARRIED unanimously.

b. Aoril 2012 Financial Review

Steve Houser, MRGCD Secretarylrreasurer gave a review of the Revenue & Expense Statement
July 2011 through April 2012 and the third quarter Department of Finance & Administration financial
reports.

Director Kelly had questions regarding the Reserve Contingency Funds and its reconciliation and
MRGCD inventories and Mr. Houser responded. Director Sichler had questions regarding Water
Bank funds and the General Fund and Mr. Shah and Mr. Houser responded. Director Sichler said he
thinks they need to think, at some point, about placing the Water Bank monies into the General Fund
to help pay expenses. Director Oglesby asked about the increases in the Water Bank fund and Mr.
Houser and Mr, Shah responded.

c ADproval of April 2012 Invoice for Wiggins. Williams & Wiggins

Chairman Lente called for approval of the April 2012 Invoice for Wiggins, Williams & Wiggins.

Director Kelly made the MOTION TO APPROVE THE APRIL 2012 INVOICE FOR WIGGINS,
WILLIAMS & WIGGINS AS PRESENTED. Director Oglesby seconded the motion The MOTION
CARRIED unanimously,

d Approval of April 2012 Invoice for Steven L. Hernandez, PC

Chairman Lente called for approval of the April 2012 Invoice for Steven L Hemandez, PC.

Director Kelly made the MOTION TO APPROVE THE APRIL 2012 INVOICE FOR STEVEN L.
HERNANDEZ, PC AS PRESENTED. Director Paiz seconded Ihe motion The MOTION CARRIED
unanimously.



BK70l23

e. Aoiovpl of lnteim Agreement for Law & Resource Planning Associates,

Mr. Houser explained the need for amending the Law & Resources Planning Associates Interim
Agreement. After discussion of the dates and wording in the agreement Director Sichier made the
MOTION TO APPROVE THE AMENDED INTERIM PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
FOR LAW & RESOURCE PLANNING ASSOCIATES. Director Abeita seconded the motion
Director Oglesby requested wording be changed to say “the work under this Amended Interim
Agreement shall be extended through April 9, 2012”. Director Sichler said he would accept this
amendment to his motion. The MOTION CARRIED unanimously.

f. Aoorovpl of April 2012 Invoice for Law & Resource Planning Associates

Chairman Lente called for approval of the April 2012 Invoice for Law & Resource Planning
Associates.

Director Kelly said there is a bunch of work from Patrick Redmond regarding the Bureau ofReclamation Biological Assessment and Biological Opinion and he trusts the MRGCD ESA
Committee has reviewed the billing and approves of the process. Director Sichler said he appreciates
having Mr. Redmond in this process and he thinks that LRPA is doing ok. Director Oglesby said it
might be helpful to get a briefing from LRPA on all the research that has been done and Dr. DuMarsagreed. Director Oglesby requested an explanation of the Neas’ Statement of Issues and Dr. DuMarsgave those details and said he would share the information with General Counsel.

Director Dunning made the MOTION TO APPROVE THE APRIL 2012 INVOICE FOR LAW &RESOURCE PLANNING ASSOCIATES AS PRESENTED. Director Sichler seconded the motion.The MOTION CARRIED unanimously.

AGENDA ITEM NO.5- APPROVAL OF ThE MINUTES

a. Reoulpr Meetino MaY 14. 2012

Chairman Lente called for approval of the minutes for the Regular Meeting of May 14, 2012,
Directors Oglesby and Kelly had corrections.

Director Oglesby made the MOTION TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE REGULARMEETING OF ThE BOARD OF MAY 14, 2012 AS REVISED. Director Paiz seconded the motion.The MOTION CARRIED.

b Budoet WprkShoD — May 29. 2012

Chairman Lente called for approval of the minutes for the Budget Workshop of May 29, 2012,Director Oglesby had one correction. Director Kelly asked if there should be a reference to the othertwo budget workshops that were held prior to the May 29th meeting and Ms. Wiggins responded that itis discretionary with the Board if they feet that it makes a more complete record. She said thosemeetings were duly called and noted in accordance with the Open Meetings Act. Director Paiz said
he feels there should just be the one where the budget and resolution were approved. It was theconsensus of the Board that only minutes of the May 29th workshop should be noted

Director Oglesby made the MOTiON TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE BUDGETWORKSHOP OF MAY 29, 2012 AS REVISED. Director Paiz seconded the motion. The MOTIONCARRIED.

AGENDA ITEM NO.6- FY 2012/2013 BUDGET - AMENDED BUDGET RESOLUTION BA-06..i1-12-62.1

Stovo Houser, MRGCD SecretarylTreasurer explained an error on the reconciliation of the spreadsheetwhich resulted in an overstatement of the budget by $189,000 He said the good news is the budget isactually $189000 less than what was originally approved Mr Houser said he sent an e-mail to the Board onthe evening of June 1 thinking this may result in an audit finding. He said in speaking with Susan M.Rodriguez, Budget & Finance Analyst with the Department of Finance & Administration the e-mail was



8K70-124
received timely and was within the timeframe and there would be no audit finding Mr Houser is requesting
the Board resign an amended budget resolution recognizing the overstatement arid correction. He read the
resolution into the record.

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF ThE MIDDLE RIO GRANDE CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

AMENDED BUDGET ADOPTION FISCAL YEAR 07-01.12709640-13

BA-06-11-1242.1

WHEREAS, the Governing Body of the Middle Rio Grande Conservancy District, State of New Mexico, has developed a budgetfor fiscal year 2012-2013; and

WHEREAS, said budget was developed on the basis of need and through cooperation with all user departments anddepartment supervisors; and

WHEREAS, at Special Meetings of the Board held May 15, May 16 & May 29, 2012 were caNed for the purpose of evaluatingthe budget; and

WHEREAS, at the Special Meeting of the Board held May 29, 2012 the Board approved Resolution for Budget Adoption forFiscal Year 201212013.

WHEREAS, it was discovered after the May 29, 2012 adoption of Budget Resolution No.BA-05-29-12-62, the FIscal Year201212013 budget was inaccurately calculated; arid

WHEREAS, the inaccurate calculation resulted in the overstatement of Fiscal Year 201212013 budget in the amount of$189,049: and

WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2012/2013 budget was appropriately reduced by the amount of the overstatement; and

WHEREAS, the Governing Body determined that the assessed property tax mill rates to meet the Middle Rio GrandeConservancy District’s fiscal 2012-2013 budget needs should be neither increased nor decreased, when compared to fiscal year 2011 andshall remain at 3.97 miNe for residential property and 4.96 mills for non-residential property, and

NOW, ThEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Governing Body of the Middle Rio Grande Conservancy District, havingadopted the fiscal year 2012-2013 budget hereinabove described, and respectfully requests approval from the Local Government Divisionof the Department of Finance and Administration to continue to levy mill rates as previously assessed. Those rates will be 3.97 mills forResidential Property and 496 mills for Non•resldential Property; both to be effective for FY2012-2013.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS 11TH DAY OF JUNE. 2012.

MIDDLE RIO GRANDE CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

Derrick J. Lente, Chairman

ATTEST:

Steven 1. Ilouser, SecretarylTreasurer

Eugene Abeita, Vice-Chairman John P Kelly, Director

Chris Sichler, Director Karen Dunning, Director

Adrian Oglesby, Director Johnny Paiz, Director

Director Oglesby MADE THE MOTION TO APPROVE THE AMENDED BUDGET RESOLUTION BA-08..
11-1242.1. Director Sichier seconded the motion The MOTION CARRIED unanimously.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7-ITEMS FROM THE FLOOR

Pat McCraw said she feels the Board is not reflecting the true minutes of what goes on at the board
minutes by not including comments from the public



BK 7O 125

Claudio Gonzales said the Board left out the election of the Secretary/Treasurer under the Reorganization
of the Board. He said his homeowner’s association would like the MRGCD to consider cameras and lighting
along MRGCD easements and crossings where the speed limit is in excess of 35 mph.

JoAnn Van Der Geest, Michael Lundmark, Patrick Sanchez, Myra SanchezChang-Thompson and Jess
Franks all had comments regarding a pipe gate that was recently constructed and placed on the Los Chavez
Drain. Chairman Lente and other Board members requested that staff resolve this issue and get a report back
to the Board.

Toni Barrow said she is hoping that the Board will put a lot of teeth in the Water Allocation policy they will
be voting on at this meeting. She inquired about land that remains fallow for several years and Mr. Shah,
Director Oglesby and Dr. DuMars gave explanations and she has been told by her Ditch Rider that she will be
on a 21 day rotation and her crops will not survive that rotation.

Sonya Vigil said she would like the Board’s help in resolving an issue with her neighbor and they have
tried to work with him, but the neighbor has buried the ditch and her Ditch Rider has chained the relief gate.
Director Sichler requested staff to research this issue.

AGENDA ITEM NO.8- DISCUSSIONIAPPROVAL OF WATER ALLOCATiON POLICY

Chairman Lente asked the Recording Secretary to advise the Board that the draft resolution regarding the
approval of this policy cannot be considered because it had not been published on the agenda and she
complied.

Dr. DuMars reviewed the redline changes that were made to the policy. Discussion followed regarding the
number of days that illegal irrigators would have to provide written notice of proof (paragraph “q”) The Board
was in consensus that fifteen (15) days would be sufficient notice for those irrigators. Director Kelly said that
he liked the suggested increase for the first year in the Water Bank lease fees to those illegal irrigators that
decided to use the Water Bank and was that a comment from anyone in particular or staff. Director Sichler
said it was a comment he received from a constituent and he recommended that it be placed in the policy.
Director Dunning had a question regarding pumping and Mr. Shah answered her question and she also
requested that he/she be placed before irrigator.

Director Dunning asked about the last paragraph (Item 4) regarding Appeal of MRGCD decisions.
Discussion followed and was specifically on the verbiage in the paragraph stating “In the absence of specific
evidence to the contrary, the Board must give deference to the decisions of its staff”. Dr. DuMars also asked
about the length of time the Board would have to make a decision on the appeal and it was a consensus that
fifteen (15) days was appropriate.

Director Sichier asked if the Board was looking at postponing approval of the policy for another two weeks
and Dr. DuMars said he felt the Board could react to the policy and approve it, but not the resolution and the
Board could make the choice. Director Sichier said he would like to see the Board approve the policy at this
meeting. Chairman Lente agreed that it is time to put something in place to protect the irrigators. Director
Oglesby said he feels pretty good about the policy and that the Board is in general agreement, however, a
policy does not become policy until it is adopted by resolution. He said the policy is not real until the Board
approves the resolution. Director Dunning requested that a “whereas” be placed into the resolution regarding
the effort made for public comment to this policy

Director Kelly asked that this item be tabled until later in the meeting and that would allow Dr. DuMars to
modify the policy and then the Board could revisit this agenda item. Chairman Lente said it will be tabled and
come back as agenda item 10[

AGENDA ITEM NO.9- REPORT(S) FROM THE DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

a Bureau of Reclamation Mike Harriman, Area Manager gave the summary and bucket reports.

1. Heron Summary
Content = 2664.83 ac-fl (06/10)
Azotea tunnel has flow of -100 cfs at present



BK7fl- 126
Total SJC inflow year-to-date 45217 a.f
Currently releasing 50 cIs (native)
Current MRGCD storage. 32,900 ac-ft (2012 allocation + 12,000 remaining 2011)

2. El Vado Summary
A Total storage (all contractors and natural) in El Vado as of 06110:

108,248 ac-ft.

B. Native in El Vado
0 ac-ft. plus 1,664 ac-ft EDWA minnow carryover, plus 15,052 ac-ft MRGCD EDWA,
and 32,453 Prior and Paramount

C. MRGCD’s Si-C storage in El Vado
59,080 ac-ft

D. All other SJ-C contractors:
0 ac-ft

Current release is 950 cfs Natural inflow is 100 cfs

3. Storage in Abiquiu
Content = 167,980 ac-ft (06/10)
MRGCD’s Si-C storage 2,212 ac-ft

Snowpack Data
All SNOTEL sites have melted out

May Streamfiow Forecast
Rio Grande @ Del Norte Co 290,000 ac-ft (55%)
El Vado Reservoir Inflow (Mar-Jut) 115,000 ac-ft (49%)
Rio Grande @ Otowi 315,000 ac-ft (42%)
Jemez R. below dam 13,500 ac-ft (30%)
Rio Grande @ San Marcial 141,000 ac-ft (25%)

Article VII restrictions still in effect which precludes storage of native in El Vado.

Mr. Hamman said the Board will recall that the BOR requested that 12,000 ac-ft be left in Heron
while they investigated the split in the face plate at El Vado Dam which has been successfully
repaired; for the most part. He said the District can now take delivery of any of its 201112012 water
and they are free to do so.

Mr. Hamman said they are now operating under the 2003 BO and what is formally a designated
dry operating period. He said they are supposed to keep a continuous flow requirement for the
minnow through June 1 5 and then they will be winding down. He said he wanted to thank the District
for their fine work in operating the river and after the June 1 5th date they can manage the drying of the
San Acacia Reach.

Mr. Hamman said the BOR has been meeting with the subcommittee of the Board on a fairly
recurring basis to talk through the language they will be placing in the Biological Assessment (BA) and
he wants to thank Chairman Lente and Directors Sichier and Oglesby, Mr Shah and David Gensler
as well as Patrick Redmond of Law & Resource Planning Associates for their continued time and
efforts in this process He said he feels they are at a good point now and they are in the home stretch
in putting it together to transmit to the Fish and Wildlife Service Service) by July 31. Mr. Hamman
said he will be sharing the final comments at the meeting of the 7 and it will be clear what they will be
putting in the final BA.

Mr. Hamman said a letter of invitation was sent to the District to participate in the Rio Grande
Project Environmental Assessment for the Operating Agreement that is currently being done. He said
he would like the District to be part of this process along with several other agencies.



81<70127
Director Sichier inquired as to plans the BOR has to clean up the low flow conveyance channel in

Socorro County and when it might happen Mr. Hamman said they do have plans and he went on to
explain BOR priorities and processes for doing maintenance on the river.

Dr. DuMars asked Mr Hamman his realistic date when there will be a Biological Opinion (BO).
Mr. Hamman said the schedule they have knocked out with the Service is there will be a draft of the
80 in early October or November and that is at the discretion of the action agency if they will share
that draft with the other collaborators and partners. He said they will then allow sufficient time to
review the 80, negotiate changes, and hopefully there will be enough time to get a BO in place in
February 2013; prior to the expiration of the 2003 80 in March 2013. Dr. DuMars said time is getting
dose and they have been working on this project for the past nine years.

b. Bureau of Indian Affairs — Charles Riley, Designated Engineer

Mr. Riley presented the Board with a handout graph regarding the 2012 Prior and Paramount
(P&P) Water Supply and Demand. He said he was speaking with the Coalition earlier and he has
informed them they may be making a call for P&P very early this year and it may be in the next two or
three days. He said he will coordinate this with the BOR and Mr. Gensler. Directors Abeita and
Sichler asked several questions regarding P&P water and how will Mr. Riley ensure it gets to P&P
lands. Director Oglesby asked if the ‘81 agreement tied to P&P releases to Rio Grande flows and he
is curious that the District, overall, was going to be more short than they have been in the system and
he is curious why Mr. Riley is calling for P&P now as opposed when the District is shutting down El
Vado later on. He asked why Mr. Riley is calling for P&P now when the District is currently delivering
water to P&P lands. Mr. Riley said the model that is used by the Bureau is based on a 1956 demand
curve that was a pretty harsh year for the Pueblos and he then went on to describe the factors that
are placed into the model and said once the supply dips below the demand curve there should be a
call for water. He said he will call the Coalition to notify them of the situation to place the call for P&P
and it is truly up to them to say ok there is a need. Mr. Riley said he is basically giving technical
advice based on the information they need to consider in making the call. Discussion followed on the
supply and demand factors in the coming weeks. Director Paiz asked who makes the call when the
P&P water is no longer needed, and Mr. Riley said the Coalition will make that call based on the water
remaining and/or the rain that has fallen.

Pueblo of Santo Domingo Governor Sisto Quintana said at the Six Pueblo Water Coalition
meeting this morning the first discussion item was P&P water. He said he asked the Governor of the
Pueblo of lsleta if they were hurting for water and his response was no; they were fine Governor
Quintana said they want the whole Six Pueblo body to concur and say yes they want to call for the
P&P water. Governor Quintana said there is 32,000 ac-ft that is stored for P&P and his question is
there enough water to get through June, July, August, September and October and is that amount
going to last and there was no answer, He said the Six Pueblos would have to concur to call for the
P&P water and it isn’t going to be next week and it will be determined when they sit down as a whole
body.

Director Sichler said when the graph does fall below that blue line, he feels the Pueblos do need
to call for the P&P water. He said if they don’t call for it at that time, then the rest of the irrigators will
be making up that difference with the releases from El Vado, He said if they don’t call for it, then
either the rest of the irrigators will be short of waler or the District will have to release more water than
there is in storage to make up the difference. He said if the Pueblos are sitting on 32,000 ac-ft of
water, he would encourage them, once they get below the blue line, to call for it.

Mr. Riley presented a PowerPoint presentation showing work performed under BIAJBOR contract
on List A facilities on the Pueblo of Santo Domingo. He also showed slides on Proposed Upper and
Lower Community Pipeline Projects at Santo Domingo.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 10 - REPORT(S) FROM THE CHIEF ENGINEER (Subhas K. ShptL)

a. Approval ol Financial Auditing Services — Jeanette Bustamante, Administrative Officer

Steve Houser, MRGCD Secretary/Treasurer requested that he would like to present this agenda
item. He said a Request for Proposal (RFP) was solicited to conduct a fiscal and compliance audit for
fiscal year ending June 30, 2012 with an option to extend for two additional one year terms He said



BKTO-128
the RFP was advertised in compliance with the State Procurement Code, and the deadline to submit
was May 4, 2012 and seven (7) proposals were received. Mr Houser said of those seven proposals
the selection Audit Committee determined there were two highly qualified firms, three qualified firms
and two firms that were not qualifled to conduct the Districts audit. He said they asked the two highly
qualified firms to return for best and final offers. He said after careful consideration and thorough
review of each proposal and best and final offers submitted by Mackie, Reid & Company, PA and
Accounting and Consulting Group, LLP, staff is recommending that the District contract with Mackie,
Reid & Company, PA. Mr. Houser said the feeling was they have the technical experience, they know
the District; they have performed nine audits for the District and are highly qualified. He said the
amount of the contract for fiscal year ending June 30, 2012 will be $39,590 and he would recommend
the option to extend for two additional one-year contracts at the specified contract amounts.

Director Abeita made the MOTION TO ACCEPT STAFF RECOMMENDATION FOR FINANCIAL
AUDI’flNG SERVICES TO MACKIE, REID & COMPANY, PA IN THE AMOUNT OF $39,590 AND
THE OPTION TO EXTEND FOR TWO ADDITiONAL ONE-YEAR CONTRACTS AT THE SPECIFIED
CONTRACT AMOUNTS. Director Kelly seconded the motion. The MOTION CARRIED unanimously.

b. Approval of General Liability, Automobile, Property, Equipment, Professional Liability, E&O and
Workers Compensation Insurance — Jeanette Bustamante, Administrative Officer

Jeanette Bustamante, MRGCD Administrative Officer presented the Request for Proposal (RFP).
She said the full package for General Liability and Workers Compensation Insurance was solicited for
a July 1, 2012 inception with an option to extend the contract in increments of one year renewals, not
to exceed a total term of four (4) years. She said the RFP was advertised in compliance with the
State Procurement Code, and the deadline to submit was May 23, 2012 and three (3) proposals were
received. Proposals were received from Hub International Insurance Services, NM Self Insurers Fund
and Brown & Brown Insurance.

Ms. Bustamante said that after careful consideration and thorough review of each proposal, Best
and Final Offers from the finalists, and a final legal opinion, staff is recommending the award for
insurance for one year with the option to renew or re-bid. She said the recommendation is for a
complete General Liability package to be awarded to NM Self Insurers Fund with specified
deductibles for each line of coverage in the amount of $266,522 and Workers Compensation with
$1,500 deductible to Hub International Insurance Services in the amount of $213,810. She said the
total cost for insurance coverage for MRGCD for RFP requirements is $480,332.

Director Sichler asked if this was within in budget and Mr. Houser and Ms. Bustamante
responded that is was and gave the parameters.

Director Kelly made the MOTION TO APPROVE STAFF RECOMMENDATION FOR GENERAL
LIABILITY INSURANCE TO NM SELF INSURERS FUND IN ThE AMOUNT OF $266,522 AND
WORKERS COMPENSATION INSURANCE TO HUB INTERNATIONAL INSURANCE SERVICES
IN THE AMOUNT OF $213,810 FOR ONE YEAR WiTH OPTION TO RENEW OR RE-BID. Director
Paiz seconded the motion. The MOTiON CARRIED unanimously.

c. Approve Position Classification, Total Compensation Survey & FY 2013 Compensation Plan Mary
D’Omellas, HR Directors

Ms DOrnellas said on May 14, 2012 a presentation of this plan was given to the Board by Kay
Tilzer, Consultant with Public Sector Personnel Consultants, She said there are several
recommendations within the Plan that Board members should consider very carefully. Director
Dunning asked if they were accepting the report or the recommendations at this meeting and at a
future meeting the Board should have a discussion on the specific recommendations and Ms.
D’Ornellas said the Board is just accepting the report only

Director Dunning made the MOTION TO ACCEPT THE REPORT FROM PUBLIC SECTOR
PERSONNEL CONSULTANTS ON POSITION CLASSIFICATION, TOTAL COMPENSATION
SURVEY AND FY 2013 COMPENSATION PLAN AS PRESENTED Director Oglesby seconded the
motion. The MOTION CARRIED unanimously.

Chairman Lenle left the meeting at 550PM,



81(70-129

d MRGCD 2012 Emergency Operations Plan

Mr. Shah said the Board has the 2012 Emergency Operations Plan in their packet and this
document contains all of the necessary contact information in the event of an emergency. He said it
also contains all the contact information for the District and each of the Divisions Director Abeita
asked if Tom Thorpe, MRGCD PlO would disseminate this information and Mr. Shah responded that
he would.

a. Resolution M-06-1 1-12-120 — Amending Land Sale to Dennis & Barbara Williams on 12)13/2010

Mr. Shah gave a brief review of the land sale that occurred in December 2010 and discrepancies
that were found at a later date on the right-of-way encroachment. He said a subsequent survey, by a
licensed surveyor, revealed the larger encroachment and the appraisal amount. Mr. Shah said the
New Mexico Board of Finance agreed to approve the sale subject to a review by the Board and their
approval.

RESOLUTiON OF ThE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF ThE MIDDLE RIO GRANDE

AMEND BOARD ACTION AND QUIT CLAIM DEED OF REPLAT OF
TYLER SUBOMSION MAP 25

_____________________________________________-

M-06-11-12-120

WHEREAS, in December 2010 the Kenneth and Kathleen Conwell Trust through their representatives, The New Mexico Bank and
Trust, requested the MRGCD to sign a replat of Tyler Subdivision Map 25 to correct an illegal subdivision of land created in1974.

WHEREAS, the MRGCD agreed to sign the replat after the owners of Lot 4, Tyler’s Subdivision, Dennis and Barbara Williams,
corrected an encroachment of their properly on the right-of-way of the Griegos Lateral owned by the MRGCD

WHEREAS, the New Mexico Bank and Trust Initiated the purchase of the right-of-way encroachment on the Griegos Lateral on
behalf of the Williams to facilitate the replat of the illegal subdivision, with the intention that the right-of-way encroachment be sold to the
adjacent landowners of Lot 4 Tyler Subdivision, Dennis and Barbara Williams, as per the MRGCD’s land sales policy,

WHEREAS, an appraisal was ordered based upon an estimate of the encroachment made by MRGCD staff of approximately 4500
square feet, which was approved for sale by the MRGCD Board of Directors on December 13, 2010.

WHEREAS, a subsequent survey by a licensed surveyor of the actual encroachment revealed that the encroachment, with corners
squared approprIately for sale, was approximately 8031 square feet, raising the value of the land above $25,000 and, therefore, requiring
New Mexico Board of Finance approval. At that time there was a sale of land in the Tyler Subdivision pending the correction of the
encroachment on MRGCD right-of-way and Ihe approval of the replat.

WHEREAS, these discrepancies in the size of the encroachment arid the parties to the sale were reviewed by the MRGCD Board
Chairperson, who signed the quitclaim deed to Dennis and Barbara Williams on AprIl 11, 2011 for 8(Xil square feet at a prIce of
$30,118.25 using the appraised value of the land,

WHEREAS, the New Mexico Board of Finance agreed to approve the sale of the right-of-way of the Griegos Lateral adjacent to Lot 4Tyler Subdivision, Map 25 conditioned on an MRGCD Board of Directors resolution formally acknowledging the discrepancy between the
amount of land approved for sale in the Board minutes of December 13, 2010 and the land actually sold, that the MRGCD’s intention was
for the land to be sold to the owners of Lot 4, Dennis and Barbara Williams, rather than the New Mexico Bank and Trust, as was reflected
in the Board minutes, and, finally, that the approval would be conditional on issuing a new quitdaim deed to Dennis and Barbara Williams
alter the New Mexico Board of Finance approval date of May 21, 2012 and this MRGCD resolution

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Governing Body of the Middle RIo Granda Conservancy District, hereby
acknowledges, clarifies and confimis the terms of the land sale as described in this resolution reflects the true interest of the parties, andagrees to reissue the Quit Claim Deed as required by the New Mexico Board of Finance to Dennis and Barbara Williams for 8,031 squarefeet of flghl-ot-way on the Grtegos Lateral.

PASSED AND APPROVED ON THIS 11TH DAY OF JUNE, 2012.

MIDDLE RIO GRANDE CONSERVANCY DISTRICT

Derrick J Lerite, Chairman
ATTEST:

Steven L. [looser, SeaelarylTreasurer

Foqene Abeita, Vice-Chairman John P kelly Director

Chris Sichier Director karen Dunning Director

Adrian Oglesby Director Johnny Paiz, Director



BKT013()
Director Sichfer made the MOTiON TO APPROVE RESOLUTION M-0611-12-120 AMEND

BOARD ACTION AND QUIT CLAIM DEED OF REPLAT OF TYLER SUBDIVISION MAP 25.
Director Oglesby seconded the motion. The MOTION CARRIED unanimously.

Water Avallblllty eipor1 — David Oon&er MROCD HydrologIst

Mr. Gensler reporled that unlorlunaloly ii has been a tough year su tar and it In only thu e4ond
week of June He said the river Ia very low, tho loweril he can recall seeing this early In the year Ho
sald the Colorado Is sending about 100 efa arrnia the State line end Chama Is down about 0 cf, of
natural flow above El Jadn, earl lheoo .me flows that mire typh.nily man in August, late rim
condlflone Mr Gensler saId the DistrIct has been releasIng water from rilorage for about two weeks
and used approidmat.ly 15000 ac-ft so tar He said there have been a lot of problems golhn waler
down the aver this year and Ihere is about 1500 cfs coming out of GochIll mind H went up again today
end i over 1500 cts He amid out of that they mire only seeing about Th0 actually arrivIng at islata
Dam and between the Cochill Reservoir roleaso and lalele Dam there h roughly 70 cfa disappearIng.
mmmc of lhl ri being diverted — 360 cfs at Cochill arid Ançjoslure, plus there I still about 400 cIa that
Is uaI mang He saId It could be soaking into the ground, evaporatIng, tho Bosque trees through
the Valley use a tremundouri amount mind lha City of Albuquerque is now diverting Mr. Gensier saId
the City of Albuquerque, over the last couple of years, has come on-line mind thIs year they are
divertIng much closer to theIr capacity from what they have in the past. Ho saId they are divertIng
iboul 100 rfn diversion on overage every day end that could be part of the problem as to why It is so
dIffIcult to get water down the river Mr Genrilor said Mr. Hamman spoke about the S3lver Minnow
stuff going on and the BOR has bean retasing a certain waler supply arid the DIstrict haS to make
sure It gets where It needs to go and they have been doIng thrit, whIch at limes, It a great burden on
the District and is a twgut that has to be mat Ho said that everyone a target has to be met, howavor,
Ihe DistrIct must rmiept lie requIrements end It there Is a shortfall among all the other entities. the
DistrIct makes up the difference Mr. Genstan said the minnow stuff will change on June 1 “ and after
that dale, the DIstrict can begin to hvø the drying of the rlvor there are restrictions on how fast Ii can
be dried, but everyone Is In agreement, given the water situation this yse that II can be drIed fairly
quIckly and minlmli. the reteaso of what little stored water Is still upstream. He said that Socorro has
been suffering a tot the last Iwo weeks: aO-75%. arid they have boon very patient. He said as of
rhurridoy they will begin diverting more water and on Friday, It will pick up subutantl&Iy. Mr, Gensier
said there a about 6f1,000 ac-ft still In storage available this year and pulling through at the role of
about 1.400 ac-ft per day right now miii that means about sixty days. in the absence of any rain.
before the storage Is eRheustmld

Director Abeita asked about the P&P water and Mr. Gensler responded he thought that Mr. Riley
gave an accurate description of what will happen with the P&P this year. He said they have
established a demand curve and when the demand curve is reached, there is justification for release
and the Pueblos can call for it. He said he’s not sure that it will happen as quickly as Mr. Riley is
speculating; he heard that Colorado has gotten a little behind in their Compact deliveries and might be
sending a little more water across the State line and maybe the natural flow will increase. He said it is
quite likely that sometime during this summer there will be a release of P&P water called for by the
Pueblos. Director Abeita asked the last time the Pueblos did call for P&P water and Mr. Gensler
responded there have been a few years they have called, but it has not been released; the demand
curve did not jusufy the release. He said he believes the last time it was actually released was in
2004.

Director Kelly said the last couple of meetings the Board has discussed what is the District’s
Drought Management policy mind he was told they react as thIngs go along. He asked at what point
does the District cut off the Water Bank users, who should be the fIrst to be cut arid maybe Ihal’s a
question he should ho asking Mr Shah. He said if the Dlslrict is going to be running out of waler in
mid July. based on everyone’s crystal ball. with or without rain, the District will run out some time In
Augusi and when does the District enforce the requlalions that are In effect. Mr Shah said the Board
will decIde when that happens and the Water Hank users wIll go first. Director Sichler said this is a
complicated question mind he Ihinks the Board needs to look into that before next year comes along.
He said the Water Bank policy does require some changes and jurit cutting the Water Bank users off
is a lot more difficult than wriai it seems and it ham, never bofln done before He said the Water Bank
needs about 4,000 acti to get thorn through the year mind that is not a hugo amount of water Director
hichkr said personally he doesn’t think he could vote to out them off this year because the Board
raised the rates and they were told there was enough water for them. He said neal year could be a
different story. Ha said Its going to take Board action to do, but its not something that can he taken



BK70131
lightly and luat tell stuff to cut the Water Bank users oil end okpect them to go out and haus Ii done in
a week or two Director Slchler i-aid the Board needs to look at the Water Bank rules and find a way
that I going to make it us simple as possIble He sold the Board Water Bank Committee has several
llama they need to took at that have bean d.rmunu In past meetings Director aNy said ha concurs
that 1hI8 5 something that shouldn’t be token tightly, but he does appreciate having the dIscussion
bacaus when El \Jedo hi amply, there will be a lot of people sitting in the audience wondering where
all the waler went and the Beard nnds to be ithla to address that a bent they canI

Director Kelly asked what triggers a request of the Water Utility Authority to borrow water; it has
happened in the past and is it even an option any more. Director Sichier says there is an agreement
with the City and the District has been paying them back every year with 7,000 ac-ft of water and it is
his understanding, the reason for doing this is, according to the agreement, the District can ask for
more water at any time. He said they are not required to pay back the water if the District doesn’t
have it, but they have been doing it trying to be current with the agreement. Director Sichier said the
District should ask to borrow the water for next year and if they don’t want to loan it, then he doesn’t
feel the District should continue repaying the 7,000 ac-ft if they don’t have it. He thinks they should
test it out. Director Olgesby asked if the City is following the same pattern as in the past and Mr.
Gensler said they do have a consistent pattern in their operations, but this year is a little different. He
said he thinks they are stilt in the process of adapting their operations and finding what works and
what doesn’t. He said there is a distinct pattern; they run at a pretty steady rate through the day and
then just about midnight every night they shut off for a couple of hours arid then they come back on
line. Director Oglesby asked if Mr. Gensler was seeing an increase or decrease in the amount they
are taking. Mr. Gensler said overall they are steadily increasing the average amount they are taking.
He said they have been releasing water from their storage to make up for it. Director Oglesby asked if
there are any open lines of communication with them in terms of their operations and Mr. Gensler said
their Water Ops call every morning, but it is pretty hard to make those 20 cfs adjustments.

Director Oghieby akad Mr Shah d he knew how many people era IrrIgating illegally and Is there
an acreage amount. Mr. Shah said he didni know. DIrector Oglesby said he understand thecompIeihes of the Water Bank and the due process i-mans ot culling off people. but tihigat lrriIiernrs
are illegal at (he end of the day He mild that when they have the Water AllocatIon Policy and
reoluilon approved, he hopes that siaft will develop a lt of illegal Irrigators and then go out and red
leg and put these people on no&e. Dr. DuMars said that when this policy is approved, staff will need
a directive from the Board as to what they want done. He said he is not sure the Water Utility
Authority would not lend the District water, and there has been a relationship over time and he doesn’t
think it is a foregone conclusion they would turn the District down, at this point and it’s worth a try.

Director Sichier said there was a study done by Batleau & Associates and he’s not sure if it was
conclusive or not, but he thinks that maybe it is something that should be looked into and concluding
the study. Mr. Gensler said it is worth resurrecting, but it was never finalized. Dr. DuMars said they
did find some correlations between the rates of diversion at the diversion points and the releases and
these were at Isleta. Director Sichier said as far as P&P water, if the District gets to August or early
September and it is clear that the Pueblos are not going to need all that water, will the District be able
to get some of the water with the District’s water credits, before it can be used. Mr. Gensler said hethinks there is a good possibility of that. He said it is a three-way issue right now between the District.
the Interstate Stream Commission and the BIA. Director Sichler said if the District wasn’t in Article
VII, then it would just revert into El Vado, but since the District is in Article VII, it needs to be released
and since the District has Compact credits that can be stored, then the District can keep the water.
Director Sichier asked Mr. Gensler if a 21 -day rotation was being effected and Mr. Gerisler said no
that is not the general policy and there is no set rotation across the District. He said individual Ditch
Riders might enforce that, but it is not a set policy. Director Sichler expressed his thanks to Mr.
Gensler for the good job he is doing.

Director Paiz said they’ve discussed a lot of important issues and does some sort of communiqué
need to be sent to constituents with this information, Discussion followed on what might be done
through the MRGCD Public Information Office for these issues. Director Abeita mud he teals the
illegal water use will take care of itself Ho said the farmers are going to rot on those that are irrigntinq
ihigaily wid when push comes to shove, it will happen



BKFO-1 i2

g. Status Report on Solution to the Culver Crossing at Umbrage Mini Farms

Mr Shah said this is an issue left from the last Board meeting and since then a crossing has been
installed arid the contractor did a wonderful job. He said it was paid for by residents of the
neighborhood, but there are other crossings that need attention. Lorna Wiggins, MRGCD General
Counsel said from the May 14th discussion under the license granted to the Umbrage Company they
are required to repair the culvert and that is true whether the licensee still owns the property or not.
She said It is clear that the current land owners are also liable because they are the individuals using
the crossing as defined in MRGCD regulations. Ms. Wiggins said they also have a duty to maintain
and replace the crossings. She said it is her firm’s suggestion that, should the situation come up
again, that the MRGCD issue notices of financial responsibility to the affected parties and the parties
can decide how best to be responsible for the cost of repair. She said she believes it is up to the
MRGCD to repair the issues and to then bill the entity that holds the license as well as seeking
reimbursement from the landowners. She said if the District is unable to be reimbursed through the
invoicing process, then ultimately the recourse is through the Courts. She said it is fortunate in this
situation because Umbrage Corporation continues to be an active corporation.

Director Dunning asked what is the ultimate solution to this. Ms. Wiggins said her firm doesn’t
recommend that the District consent for the license relationship to be terminated unless it suits the
MRGCD’s interest. She said as a part of that commercial transaction, Umbrage Corporation could
have addressed this, and taken care of it, and in her view it was the failure of Umbrage Corporation to
do just that that. Ms. Wiggins said older licenses didn’t address what would happen in these
situations, but the issue has since been rectified in the license agreement. She said she thinks it
would be to the District’s disadvantage to let these licenses be revoked or, unless that person says,
the beneficial users are willing to agree to the terms of the license. Director Dunning asked if the
licensee no longer exists and in cases like that what happens and Ms. Wiggins said the District will
look to the individuals that are using the property. Director Kelly asked about the possibility of placing
liens on properties for collection arid discussion followed with input from Bruce Wiggins of the
Wiggins, Williams & Wiggins.

Vice Chair Abeita said that it was getting near 6:30PM and the Board would have to approve
extending the meeting. Director Oglesby said he would be willing to defer agenda item 12a until the
next meeting and Director Sichier suggested that they do Reports from the Attorney and the Executive
Session, if necessary, and defer Reports from the Board until next meeting. Dr. DuMars said the
Executive Session c-sri be deferred until the next meeting, and he has given all of the necessary
information to the Board in a memo.

Director Oglesby made the MOTION TO EXTEND THIS MEETING UNTiL 7:30PM AND DEFER
AGENDA ITEMS 12 AND 13 UNTIL THE NEXT MEETING. Director Sichler seconded the motion.
The MOTION CARRIED unanimously.

Director Kelly requested that the remarks of Chairman Lente regarding his invitation to Pueblo of
Sandia Feast Day on Wednesday, June 1 3th be included in the minutes.

Mr. Umbrage said he has heard things in the discussion that doesn’t necessarily pertain to him
but the District has all of these old licenses and there are dead people attached to these licenses. He
said the Umbrage Company is in the position of having the license, and there are also licenses with
dead people, and the if the District policy becomes going after the people with licenses, then they
dilute their ability to focus on the beneficiaries because they are setting a policy in place that says lets
go after people that are no longer affected. He said he doesn’t have enough money to do the
crossings so this could come up again. He participated in the Williams crossing and he c-an do the
other, but he cannot on the Barr Interior Drain arid they could all be back discussing the same issue
Ms. Wiggins said this is why the District should look at the individual landowners who are using the
crossing, the beneficial users. Mr. Umbrage said if it was up to him, he would say to pull out the
crossings because he no longer owns the property Director Oglesby asked if the residents in this
neighborhood have been advised of this decision because it may motivate them to try and resolve the
issue and Mr. Shah said they have been advised.



BK7Q133

h Memo on MRGCD Approved Licenses for May 2012 (Informational Purposes Only)

MRGCD Fire Restriction Policy

Mr. Shah said that last week there was a meeting of agencies from all four counties; the City of
Albuquerque, Open Space, Sandoval, Bemalillo, Sandoval, Valencia & Socorro counties. He said
every year they meet to discuss dosing of the Bosque and what the procedure would be. Mr. Shah
said each year the Board reviews the situation and has a chance to dose the Bosque by themselves.
He said they ask staff to work with local agencies and make sure they are all in agreement when the
Bosque should be dosed. Director Oglesby said the Board has already given that authority to Mr.
Shah arid isn’t sure they need to do it again formally, but he certainly believes the need is there and
all Board members concurred.

Tom Thorpe, MRGCD PlO said he is involved in a telephone conversation each week with the
other agencies involved to ensure they have a concerted public information effort so that everyone is
on the same page and disseminating the same information. Mr. Thorpe said he spoke with the Village
of Corrales this morning and they would like to dose their Bosque this week and if not, then early next
week after their Council meeting. He said Bernalillo County is following along with the City of
Albuquerque and going into Stage II Fire Restrictions, Valencia County did not respond and the
Socorro County Fire Marshall’s office would like the Bosque dosed the week before the 4th of July
holiday; unless there is appreciable moisture and State Forestry and Sandoval County said they will
support anything the District wants to do. Mr. Thorpe said it will be up to Mr. Shah and the Board as
to the moisture content when they want to close the Bosque and where. He said all the agencies are
working well in tandem to disseminate the information.

j. Revisit of the Water Distribution Policy

Dr. DuMars read to the Board the relevant revised sections. He said Item 4— Appeal of MRGCD
Decisions will read — ‘The affected party has the burden of providing specific evidence contradicting
the position of staff regarding the matter. Otherwise, the Board must give deference to the decisions
of its staff. The Board shall make a decision on the appeal no later than fifteen (15) days from the
date of the presentation before the Board”. Dr. DuMars said the Board could approve the policy at
this meeting and he will prepare a specific resolution for the next meeting.

Vice Chair Abeita asked the Board members if they wanted to approve the policy or how they
wanted to move forward. Director Paiz said he would like to approve it now and he made the
MOTiON TO APPROVE THE WATER DISTRIBUTiON POLICY AS AMENDED. Director Sichler
seconded (he motion. Director Oglesby said he is still on the fence about the appeals paragraph and
he would like to make one suggestion. He said that right now it says the “Board must give deference
to the decisions of its staff’. Director Oglesby said he would like to replace the word decisions with
factual determinations Discussion followed on the suggestion. Director Oglesby made the MOTION
TO AMEND THE MOTION TO CHANGE THE WORD DECISIONS WITH FACTUAL
DETERMINATIONS. Director Dunning seconded the motion. Ms Wiggins said a vote will occur on
the amendment first. The MOTION CARRIED unanimously. Vice Chairman called for a vote on the
first motion which was to approve the policy itself with the changes noted. Director Kelly said he finds
it troublesome to adopt the policy when their own Governance Handbook says they adopt rules and
regulations via resolutions. He said he would like to approve the language and he would like to make
it conditional approval subject to a proper resolution brought to the Board in two weeks and he’s not
quite sure the motion stated that conditional approval. Dr. DuMars said the Board is approving the
language of the policy, but subject to the final language of the resolution adopting this policy is a
different thing, Director Oglesby said he calls the question. Vice Chair Abeita called for a vote TheMOTION CARRIED unanimously

Director Kelly said he would like to thank the Committee, staff and those that made comments to
the policy and there will be directives for staff after the resolution is approved regarding going after
illegal irrigators,



L3K70-134

AGENDA ITEM NO. 11 - REPORT(S) FROM THE ATTORNEY (Charles T. DuMars - Chief Water
Counsel)

a Review of Federal and State Water Litigation

Dr. DuMars distributed a confidential memo to the Board that he said he was going to discuss in
Executive Session regarding the status of pending litigation. He said the memo contained updated
information on the NM vs. United States and Coors vs. ABCWUA, Dr. DuMars asked the Board to
review the memo and they will discuss it in the Executive Session at the next regular meeting.

b. Review of White Paper on ESA Issues for Congressional Delegation

Dr. DuMars distributed a memo to the Board updating them on the Middle Rio Grande
Consultation and Recovery Implementation Program (RIP). He said the memo was self explanatory,
but gave some relevant dates of what is going on. Dr. DuMars asked the Board to look at the
attached agenda for the Middle Rio Grande Endangered Species Collaborative Program Executive
Committee for June 21. 2012. He said there are a lot of really important issues and they are at the
stage where there are two critical documents; the Recovery Implementation Plan and the Recovery
Action Plan. He said the criteria of these documents will be critical to whether there is coverage and
the coverage depends on what the action plan requires. Dr. DuMars asked the Board to look at item
13 on their agenda which says that on July 20, 2012 RIP Management?, Endorse RIP and Related
Documents as the ESA Coverage Vehide. He said that’s it; there will be coverage or not. Dr.
DuMars asked the Board to review the attached documents and said this is critical and he thinks the
information will be useful information for the Board. Director Oglesby said after the last negotiating
session Director Sichler made a suggestion that there needed to be a discussion of the full Board on
this regarding decisions that need to be made prior to July 20th and he requested that it be placed on
the next Board agenda. Director Oglesby asked Dr. DuMars if the Board could receive information
from Patrick Redmond on his findings during this process. He said as a member of the
subcommittee, he would appreciate it if members of the subcommittee could get copies of all the
correspondence and formal dialogue for future discussions. Director Sichler said that Director
Oglesby is correct regarding discussion this issue with the full Board, but he feels the subcommittee
needs to meet prior so they can form a recommendation.

c. Emerging Federalism Issues

Dr. DuMars said there is a case in the Lower Rio Grande right now and it is the position of the
United States that not only surface water rights, but also all the ground water rights to the mines and
the City of Las Cruces is very upset about that. He said it seems like a unique Federal position byInterior except that in the latest newsletter of the West States Water Council that there’s another NM
case they have referenced. He said the Bureau of Lane Management (BLM) has taken the position
that any damage to groundwater under BLM lands is subject to damages because they are theowners of the water under the ground on BLM Iands even though they don’t have water rights.

AGENDA ITEM NO.12- REPORT(S) FROM THE BOARD

All agenda items deferred until the next regularly schedule Board meeting.

AGENDA ITEM NO. 13— EXECUTIVE SESSION (NMSA 1978 Open Meetings Act. Section 1O-15-1(H)7)

Executive Session deferred until the next regularly schedule Board meeting.

With no further comments, questions or concerns, Director Oglesby made the MOTION TO ADJOURN
THE MEETING. Director Paiz seconded the motion and the MOTION CARRIED unanimously

The meeting was ad;ourned at 7:12PM



Approved to be the correct Minutes of the Board of Directors of June 1 1, 2012.

Attested:

Steven L. Houser Derrick J. Lente, Chairman
Secretary/Treasurer MRGCD Board of Directors

BK7O 135


